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1             JUDGE HAYNES:  Pursuant to the directio n

2 of the Illinois Commerce Commission, I now call Doc ket

3 12-0573.  This is the complaint of Simon Dickinson

4 versus Commonwealth Edison Company.

5             May I have the appearances, for the rec ord,

6 please?  Your name and address, please?

7             MR. DICKINSON:  Simon Dickinson.

8             The address as well?

9             JUDGE HAYNES:  Sure.

10             MR. DICKINSON:  2753 West Frances Place ,

11 Chicago, Illinois 60647.

12             MR. FOSCO:  Your Honor, appearing on be half

13 of Commonwealth Edison Company, Carmen Fosco with

14 Susan Rubner, Rooney, Rippie & Ratnaswamy, LLP, 350

15 West Hubbard Street, Suite 600, Chicago, Illinois 6 0654.

16             JUDGE HAYNES:  Thank you.

17             Would either party like to bring me up to

18 date on what's happened since the last meeting?

19             MR. FOSCO:  If I could, your Honor --

20             MR. DICKINSON:  Go ahead.  After you, s ir.

21             JUDGE HAYNES:  You can clarify, if you

22 disagree.
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1             MR. FOSCO:  Your Honor, my understandin g, I

2 wasn't personally involved, that there were discuss ions

3 between Mr. Rippie and other representatives of Com Ed to

4 see if there was a way to resolve the issues in thi s

5 complaint without going forward.  My understanding is

6 those discussions went on, but they ended up being in a

7 position where there was not an agreement how to re solve

8 the situation.  So, from ComEd's perspective, we be lieve

9 we need to set a schedule today to handle the balan ce of

10 the proceedings.

11             JUDGE HAYNES:  Would you like to add

12 something?

13             MR. DICKINSON:  Yes.  I started this wh ole

14 thing in October of last year.  I've had, let's see ,

15 four meetings with ComEd and ComEd -- do excuse me if

16 it takes me awhile.  I'm a little out of breath and  not

17 very well right now.

18             I spoke with ComEd on a couple of occas ions.

19 We had an original quote was from an electrician fr iend

20 of mine, was $3400, and then I spoke to another ver y

21 competent electrician who came to my property three

22 times with the ComEd -- the gentleman from Rockford ,
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1 Tom Watowski I believe and somebody from ComEd wear ing

2 the hat and everything, who would wear sunglasses o n not

3 sunny days and deal with being in a basement.

4             Once again, I want to go back to the fa ct

5 that ComEd walked onto my property without an e-mai l,

6 without a knock on the door, without a letter, with out

7 any kind of correspondence to me whatsoever prior t o

8 this.  They walked onto my property.  They walked d own

9 the side of my house.  With a key that they had fro m the

10 original owner of the house, opened the door into m y

11 apartment, swapped out my analog meter for a digita l

12 meter.  And I caught them on the way out and they s aid

13 thanks very much, Mr. Dickinson, we've read your me ter

14 and we've left you with a smart meter.  So the orig inal

15 thing is I'm thinking, ah, that's smart, you know.  But

16 all these things, smart phones, smart meters, where ver

17 it says smart, there's nothing smart about them

18 whatsoever.

19             I have been ill for two years.  I'm not  able

20 to work.  I'm losing -- I have a basement apartment  that

21 I'm not being able to rent out in two years because  of

22 this.  This here is an EMF waive meter and whatever  the
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1 last lawyer -- Mr. Rippie -- says, this things show s you

2 the hot spots in a house of radiation.  Radiation i s

3 radiation, whichever way you look at it.  It is com ing

4 up through my basement into my apartment.  I'm a --  I've

5 been a chef for years.  I'm not able to use my kitc hen

6 because it's at its highest point right there betwe en

7 the kitchen and my bedroom.  I've not been able to sleep

8 in my bedroom for over a year now.  I'm sleeping in  my

9 daughter's bunkbed.  My daughter is ten years old a nd

10 when she comes to my house now she gets horrendous

11 headaches.  She doesn't get headaches anywhere else  but

12 my house.  And, so, when I hear Mr. Rippie saying t hat

13 there is absolutely nothing wrong with these meters

14 whatsoever, I think it's all if -- I'm here for you  guys

15 to make a decision about this thing.  I want it out  of

16 my life, out of my house, not the side of my house

17 because I've been charged -- I've been told I'd be

18 charged $1500 to move this thing so I don't feel th at

19 I need to do that.  There has to be a provision for

20 these things for people like myself that are EMF wa ve

21 sensitive.

22             Now, you tell me why my ten-year-old
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1 daughter should have to put up with this?  Okay, I have

2 a video here, it's three-minutes long.  I would lik e to

3 play it for everybody today.  That is part of my --  you

4 can say -- I know what you're going to say, that th is

5 is -- you have to do that in court, Mr. Dickinson, you

6 have to go through procedures.  But if I'm dealing with

7 ComEd's lawyers and they are of the opinion that th ese

8 things do not harm you, I want to show you just

9 something so we can all be on the same page.  I'm d one.

10             And excuse me for getting uppity, but i f you

11 were in the situation, any of you, where you didn't  have

12 any sleep, terrible sleep.  You don't even look -- you

13 don't look forward to going to your own house that you

14 paid in cash and ComEd does not have the provision,  I've

15 spoken to the police and they do not have the provi sion

16 to walk into your house and break into your apartme nt

17 without your knowledge.  That -- I mean, the police

18 don't, they're not allowed to do that.  They have t o

19 have a warrant or something to come into your house .

20 So if anybody from ComEd shows up again, they're no t

21 welcome.

22             MR. FOSCO:  Your Honor, if I may?
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1             JUDGE HAYNES:  Yes.

2             MR. FOSCO:  Just to maybe add a little bit

3 on some of what you heard.  Part of the discussions  that

4 were going on were about moving the meter, which is

5 currently as I understand it on an interior wall.

6 Because it was an exterior wall and there was an

7 addition to this property, at some point in time wh ere

8 it became located, then, on an anterior wall becaus e the

9 addition was built around it.  I'm not sure exactly  when

10 that occurred.  So, the discussions were about movi ng

11 the meter and basically ComEd's position was we're

12 willing to, from our end to, take care of our costs  and

13 the cost to the complainant, but that he would have  to

14 pay to move his facility, so the references -- I th ink

15 the quotes were for that.  I mean, ComEd was not

16 offering to pay for modifying his property and that 's

17 where the discussions broke down.

18             As to the rest of the statements, your

19 Honor, I think they went really to the hearing whic h

20 we're not -- this is a status hearing.  Obviously C omEd

21 disputes those assertions, as indicated in our answ er,

22 certainly this was in evidence, this argument.  But  we
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1 still feel that leaves us in the situation where th e

2 proper thing to do is to set a schedule to deal wit h

3 this matter.  This was not a hearing date.

4             JUDGE HAYNES:  I agree that this is not  the

5 evidentiary hearing.  I have been informed by the

6 parties, Mr. Rippie and Mr. Dickinson, that settlem ent

7 discussions were happening and a couple of the hear ings

8 were continued for those discussions to happen.  Th is is

9 just a prehearing conference to find -- to bring me  up

10 to date on what happened with the discussions.  Cle arly

11 they didn't resolve it and, so, today would be to s et

12 a date to hold the evidentiary hearing and at that time

13 you would bring forth any evidence you have in supp ort

14 of your complaint.  Today would be for talking abou t if

15 discovery had happened between the parties and pick ing

16 a date for the evidentiary hearing.

17             MR. DICKINSON:  Well, that just sounds to

18 me -- you see, I guess I'm not sure what roll the

19 Illinois Commerce Commission plays in this whole th ing.

20 And that is, yes, we have things to resolve and wha t

21 have you, but there surely has to be some kind of a

22 provision for these things.  Not only that, I broug ht
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1 this thing, I gave it to the ComEd worker and I inv ited

2 them into the house and I gave this to Tom Watowski  and

3 said would you like to walk thru to where the hotsp ot

4 is?  He never -- I asked him do you know what one o f

5 these is?  No.  I had him do it and I have a witnes s to

6 that.  He walked right towards the bedroom, between

7 the kitchen and the bedroom and this thing went off  and

8 it's -- and I said what do you think of that and he  just

9 grinned at me.  He goes, ah, you know, I don't know .

10 And that's all fine and dandy, but if you're in the

11 business -- and by the way, this all affects -- you

12 know, it's not -- I'm not into sympathy, but this a ll

13 affects everybody in this house.  I'm on a pilot fo r

14 apparently 130,000 houses and apparently Chicago is  not

15 coming online until 2015.  But when it does, if you 're

16 EMF wave sensitive, you're going to go through the same

17 things as me and I wouldn't wish that upon any of y ou.

18 So I guess I want to bring a bit of awareness becau se,

19 you know, no disrespect to you, Mr. Fosco, you work

20 for ComEd and you probably do a great job and what have

21 you.  But you are really -- or not so much you, but

22 Mr. Rippie, the way he talks to me and writes to me



15

1 about there is no harm with these AMI meters -- the re

2 is.  The last time I was here, I gave him 70 pages of

3 testimonials from all over the world, of people

4 complaining about their health and all kinds of iss ues

5 and they burn and they catch on fire.  I mean, God

6 forbid, it catch on fire in my basement.  You know,

7 who's going to pay for that?  Who's going to pay fo r me

8 to go and get an MRI on my brain, you know, to make  sure

9 that I don't have cancer?  Because right now I feel  like

10 I have something really horrible going on inside me .

11             Once again, I'm not asking for sympathy , but

12 there has to be a provision to put people that are EMF

13 wave sensitive on some kind of list.  This whole th ing

14 with the EMF -- with the smart meter is it's basica lly

15 it's laziness on the part of ComEd.  It's called

16 trimming the fat.  I know all about that.  I was a chef.

17 I know how to trim the fat and make things work on the

18 budgets and that.  I understand all that.  But now it's

19 in the air we breathe, the food we eat, the water w e

20 drink, and now the electricity, which, by the way, is

21 dirty electricity.  Just like the little curly thin gs

22 with the mercury, that everybody says you have to h ave
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1 these.  They emit radiation waves.  And that's the

2 bottom line, is radiation is radiation, you know.

3             Ask yourself would you like to go home every

4 night and get, like, three or four hours sleep and then

5 try and function normally the following day?  If yo u

6 have any kids, wouldn't that bother you that your k ids

7 get headaches, you know, and just feel like crap, y ou

8 know?  I get to see my daughter once a week and thi s

9 whole thing with ComEd is in my life.  It's been in  my

10 life for two years now.  I want it out of my life.  It

11 would be so easy for somebody to come along and do what

12 they did in reverse and put me on the list, end of

13 story.  Everything goes away.  You guys don't have to

14 show up for these meetings, you don't have to, you know,

15 give me half truths and, you know, tell me one minu te,

16 oh, yes, we have the money to pay for it and blah, blah,

17 blah, blah, blah, and then get told after the fourt h

18 meeting, with a very competent electrician that kno ws

19 how to do these things, you get told, oh, no, you h ave

20 to pay for our mistake, Mr. Dickinson.  I mean, it' s

21 crazy.  Absolutely beyond the beyond.

22             JUDGE HAYNES:  It's not clear to me.  I
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1 thought that you were talking about moving it outsi de

2 and now --

3             MR. DICKINSON:  Not anymore, no.  It's gotta

4 go.  It's really -- I don't want to have the risk o f it

5 catching on fire on the side of my house.  I don't want

6 it, like, communicating between -- and another thin g,

7 it's an invasion of privacy.

8             I tell you what.  It would be really go od

9 if I can just put this on for three minutes.  I kno w

10 it's a video.  But it would help you -- maybe all o f

11 you -- understand about how bad these things are.  Will

12 you allow that, Judge?

13             JUDGE HAYNES:  I will allow it at the - -

14             MR. DICKINSON:  Not today.  Right.

15             JUDGE HAYNES:  I don't know enough abou t

16 it to say whether I will allow it or not; however,

17 definitely not today.  We are just having a schedul ing

18 today.

19             MR. DICKINSON:  Well, we're having anot her

20 round of -- I'm getting the runaround again.  It's like

21 Mr. Rippie saying to me, oh, we'll just make

22 this -- extend this for another 28 days.  No, I don 't
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1 want to do that.

2             JUDGE HAYNES:  Has the company offered --

3             MR. DICKINSON:  Any solutions -- sorry.

4             JUDGE HAYNES:  What the cost would be t o

5 have it switched out?

6             MR. DICKINSON:  Well, I was told by som ebody

7 a long took time ago that if they were to switch it  out

8 and return it to an analog meter, that I would be

9 charged $34 a month on top of the fee that I'm char ging

10 already.

11             This is another thing, is this utility bill

12 of mine.  I'm very into saving money with electrici ty.

13 I don't have a lot of stuff on -- I don't have a bi g TV

14 or large-screen TVs that emit radiation and all tha t

15 kind of stuff and, so, my bill is about $30 a month .

16 Now you ask yourself, for $30 a month with two year s of

17 just feeling like crap and now I have to go and che ck

18 out and make sure I don't have cancer.  I just want  it

19 swiped out of my life and put on the list.  I work from

20 home, which I'm not able to do with this.  I work f rom

21 home.  There is no reason why -- the people next do or

22 have an analog meter, the people behind me.  Everyo ne
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1 else around me has analog meters and they're going to

2 have analog meters until 2005(sic).  Well, between now

3 and 2005 you're going to get so many complaints abo ut

4 these things.  I mean, do you ever watch the news?  Just

5 the other day the police in Naperville were cutting

6 through peoples' property, arresting people in thei r

7 property in front of their children because they sa id

8 no.  And so you got a policeman arresting somebody

9 because they don't want to be radiated.  What's up with

10 that?

11             MR. FOSCO:  Your Honor, if I just may.  I

12 mean, obviously I think this is going beyond what i s

13 proper for a status hearing and this is pro se.  Bu t

14 beyond that area is part of the pilot that does hav e

15 AMI meters, there may be a house or two or building  or

16 two that did not have a proper fitting or they may have

17 been unable to gain access, but this an area that d oes

18 have AMI meters and the charge that he was referrin g to

19 would be the charge for a nonstandard meter and the n

20 having to do special meter readings, is what I beli eve

21 he was referring to.

22             MR. DICKINSON:  Is there a charge?
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1             MR. FOSCO:  For a nonstandard service w ith a

2 nonconforming meter.

3             MR. DICKINSON:  A nonconforming --

4             MR. FOSCO:  Obviously the commission

5 authorized AMI meters for the pilot area.

6             MR. DICKINSON:  Since I've had mine

7 installed, the people living as I said next door to  me

8 and the people behind, they've had their analog met ers

9 reinstalled by I don't know who, by an electric com pany

10 and I certainly know that somebody comes to read th eir

11 meters.  So until such time as -- not that I want t o go

12 back on in 2015 with the rest of Chicago going to c ome

13 on.

14             Here's a question.  Do any of you know what

15 eugenics is?  Have you ever heard of the word eugen ics?

16 This is directed to you, sir?

17             MR. FOSCO:  I'm not under cross-examina tion.

18             MR. DICKINSON:  Have you?

19             JUDGE HAYNES:  Sure.

20             MR. DICKINSON:  Do you know what it is?

21             JUDGE HAYNES:  What's your point?

22             MR. DICKINSON:  My point is this is par t of
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1 the eugenics program.  This is part of -- I know yo u

2 think conspiracy theory.  Yeah, put him in a box.  I've

3 been thinking outside the box a long time.  This is  part

4 of a bigger thing and you can say whatever you want .

5 But if this thing is making us ill, why do you thin k

6 they want to do this?  Why do you think they want

7 to cut into peoples' land?  Why you do think they w ant

8 to -- you know, it just goes on and on and I can te ll

9 you're just -- all right.  I'm going to stop.  I'm aware

10 of the -- look up UN Agenda 21 and get back to me.

11 Because none of you guys seem to -- you're all of t his

12 opinion that these things don't do any harm and it' s,

13 like, you only know when you have one in your house .

14 It's, like, here, I'll swap my -- you know, you hav e my

15 analog meter, I'll take your analog.  You can have my

16 smart meter for two years and then get back to me.

17             JUDGE HAYNES:  Mr. Dickinson, have you and

18 the company exchanged any documents regarding this?   Is

19 the discovery been --

20             MR. FOSCO:  We have not engaged in disc overy

21 because of these settlement negotiations.

22             JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  Is that something  the
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1 parties think that they want to do before we hold a n

2 evidentiary hearing?

3             MR. FOSCO:  No comments with respect to  -- I

4 mean, we already have assertions of physical harm a nd

5 other physical effects.

6             MR. DICKINSON:  That would involve me g oing

7 to a doctor and getting all kinds of checkups, righ t?

8             MR. FOSCO:  No -- just discovery, your

9 Honor.  I don't know what you would use to support -- we

10 would issue some discovery.

11             JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  How much --

12             MR. DICKINSON:  Just a question for thi s

13 gentleman.  Is it on the record that I'm not allowe d to

14 show this today?

15             JUDGE HAYNES:  Everything that has been  said

16 in this hearing is on -- will be on the transcript.

17             MR. DICKINSON:  I just thought I'd ask.   I

18 just want to know that I'm being squashed to show y ou

19 evidence.

20             JUDGE HAYNES:  This is not the evidenti ary

21 hearing and we will deal with that that day.  And y ou do

22 not -- you're not required to have an attorney.
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1 However --

2             MR. DICKINSON:  Oh, I think I probably am

3 now.

4             JUDGE HAYNES:  You're not.  You can sho w up

5 without it.  But what you want is do here, you migh t

6 want an attorney.  Just let me get that on the reco rd,

7 that it would probably help you to have an attorney .

8             MR. DICKINSON:  Another cost.  That's o kay,

9 yeah.  It's damned if you do or damned if you don't  with

10 this particular game.  And it feels like a game, it 's

11 like you know -- I don't know.  Just ask yourself, are

12 you prepared -- are you all prepared to have one on  your

13 house or in your house and suffer consequences?  Or  you

14 get to that when it comes, right?

15             JUDGE HAYNES:  So I guess the question is

16 how much time before would the parties like for

17 discovery before we hold the evidentiary hearing?

18             MR. FOSCO:  Your Honor, is it your inte nt

19 to have just a single day of evidentiary hearings o r

20 pre-filed testimony at all?  We were certainly

21 contemplating having an expert witness on -- given the

22 issues asserted, we were certainly planning on havi ng
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1 an expert witness, and EMF and probably radiofreque ncy

2 waves, maybe other items.  I don't know if you just  want

3 to have an initial one, where Mr. Dickinson puts on  his

4 evidence and then we follow-up to that or you wante d to

5 have just a single day of hearing.

6             How do you think we should proceed?

7             JUDGE HAYNES:  I haven't thought about it.

8 I don't know that -- I mean, Mr. Dickinson, I don't  know

9 how much thought you've put into how many witnesses  you

10 would bring.  So the question is how long --

11             MR. DICKINSON:  Well, I would probably go on

12 TV first before I bring any witnesses to this.  I'v e

13 been asked by lots of people in Chicago to come and  talk

14 about this, but I don't really feel I want to do th at.

15 I don't think it's going to do me any good.  I've s poken

16 to Rahm Emanuel's press office, they're well aware of

17 this case.  I filed today a complaint with the cons umer

18 fraud agency here in Chicago.  They will receive a lot

19 of stuff tomorrow.  Then I'm also going to be

20 calling -- speaking to Bill Clinton, who I've worke d

21 with before, to see if he can pull any strings.  I' m

22 just going to keep continuing bringing all this to
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1 a head.

2             The whole thing is I don't expect you t o

3 understand how my life's been.  I don't expect you -- I

4 don't expect you to sympathize or anything.  But I' m not

5 making this up and I want my life back and my daugh ter

6 wants her life back and she doesn't want headaches

7 anymore and I've had enough.  I just had enough.  I 'm

8 not well and for the sake of -- whatever the sake o f it,

9 just swap the thing out.  Let me have my life back.   Let

10 my daughter not have headaches, and let me enjoy a house

11 that I bought in 2009.  My parents passed -- I'm no t

12 expecting sympathy for this.  This is the story.  M y

13 parents passed away, both of them within two years.   I

14 inherited some money.  I buy this house and, then, these

15 people are ruining my "F'ing" life.  I've had enoug h.

16             MR. FOSCO:  Your Honor --

17             MR. DICKINSON:  There is nothing else t o

18 say.  There's nothing else to listen to from people

19 again just like -- they're just -- they're lawyers.

20             You know, I understand you got a job to  do.

21 You've got to squash my theories.  You got to -- yo u

22 know, just kick me around.  It's you that has to sl eep
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1 with that at night.  And it's you that has to deal with

2 an electric meter that's coming your way, a smart m eter.

3 And as I said, everything that says smart -- you se e how

4 these kids walk around like this on their smart pho nes?

5 And they walk right into you because they're so sma rt of

6 doing all this all day.

7             This thing is a hundred times worse tha n a

8 cell phone.  I can't even use my cell phone now.

9             JUDGE HAYNES:  Mr. Dickinson, do you in tend

10 to serve discovery on the company?

11             MR. DICKINSON:  Yes, I do.

12             JUDGE HAYNES:  When do you think you wi ll be

13 able to do that, request documents?

14             MR. DICKINSON:  I will have more of an idea

15 after Monday of next week.

16             JUDGE HAYNES:  Do you propose another

17 prehearing conference?

18             MR. DICKINSON:  I don't know that it's --

19 we're not getting anywhere with that.

20             JUDGE HAYNES:  Well, we can't if we can 't

21 pick dates here.

22             You were on the phone with Mr. Rippie.
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1 You and Mr. Rippie called me, told me you were havi ng

2 settlement discussions and asked to continue the da te.

3 So --

4             MR. DICKINSON:  Yes -- no.  Mr. Rippie did,

5 I did not.

6             JUDGE HAYNES:  You were on the phone wi th

7 him --

8             MR. DICKINSON:  I know, yeah.

9             JUDGE HAYNES:  -- and it was represente d

10 that the parties were requesting the dates be conti nued.

11 We can do that again, if that's what you request, o r

12 we can set dates here for discovery and to hold an

13 evidentiary hearing.

14             If you want this to move forward, we ca n

15 pick some dates for that or we can schedule another

16 prehearing conference to talk about it.

17             MR. DICKINSON:  Okay.  What dates do yo u

18 have in mind?

19             JUDGE HAYNES:  How long would it take y ou

20 to send them discovery requests, requesting documen ts,

21 whatever you had in mind from them?  How long would  it

22 take you to get that together?
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1             MR. DICKINSON:  A month.

2             JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  ComEd, will you b e

3 able to serve discovery requests on the complainant

4 within a month?

5             MR. FOSCO:  Yes, your Honor.

6             JUDGE HAYNES:  Thank you.  So, how long

7 would the parties like -- of course understand, tha t we

8 don't know how long the discovery requests will be.   But

9 let's get a date on the record and if that ends up not

10 being possible for parties to meet, we can change i t.

11 You can let me know.

12             We'll say that discovery requests shoul d be

13 served by -- one month is March 7th and how long to

14 respond to discovery requests?

15             MR. DICKINSON:  One quick thing, though  --

16             JUDGE HAYNES:  Sure.

17             MR. DICKINSON:  I've asked Mr. Rippie o n

18 four occasions who ordered me onto this pilot progr am

19 and who has the say of whether I get taken off and

20 swapped back out to an analog meter?  Or I want to know

21 what my options are.  Because I'm fed up with askin g who

22 I should be addressing this to.  I also need this f or
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1 various different -- you know, whether it be a lawy er

2 or whoever's going to do my investigation.  The per son

3 actually makes the decision, yes, Mr. Dickinson you  can

4 come off or no, Mr. Dickinson, you have to be radia ted

5 more.  I need that in writing at some stage from

6 Mr. Rippie or someone.  Because as far as I'm conce rned,

7 that's evidence and he's holding it back right now.

8             JUDGE HAYNES:  I can tell you that the

9 commission -- you've requested non-standard service ,

10 according to ComEd, to get off this meter.  And you

11 could get that apparently right away and they want to

12 charge you an amount for that to be -- to swap your

13 meter out.  The charges that they impose on you are

14 within the commission's jurisdiction to say whether

15 they're charging you the right amount.  It sounds l ike

16 you could get it, and the question is how much woul d you

17 have to pay for it.  And that is within the commiss ion's

18 jurisdiction, to say whether they're going to charg e you

19 the right amount of money.

20             MR. DICKINSON:  Is it written anywhere that

21 I can see them -- this charge that they keep coming  up,

22 because as far as I'm concerned that's extortion.
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1 Charging me something -- you know, that it's doing what

2 it's doing to me.

3             JUDGE HAYNES:  Sure.  And in discovery,  you

4 should ask them what is the basis -- I mean I'm not

5 going to give you legal advice here --

6             MR. DICKINSON:  No, I know.  I know.

7             JUDGE HAYNES:  But, absolutely, what's the

8 basis for the charges you want to charge me to swap  my

9 meter out.  And the commission has jurisdiction ove r the

10 companies --

11             MR. DICKINSON:  They do.  You have

12 jurisdiction over ComEd --

13             JUDGE HAYNES:  Rates.

14             MR. DICKINSON:  The rates?

15             JUDGE HAYNES:  The rates they charge yo u.

16             MR. DICKINSON:  Oh, okay.  Yeah.

17             JUDGE HAYNES:  Do you want to jump in a nd

18 argue it?  And in pro se compliant cases --

19             MR. DICKINSON:  Excuse me.  Who are you ,

20 sir?

21             JUDGE HAYNES:  Although it is an open

22 meeting, anyone is able to attend.  He is a commiss ion
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1 employee.

2             MR. DICKINSON:  Oh, okay.  That's -- I

3 asked.  I just recognize this lady here.  I don't

4 recognize you.  I was just going to ask who these p eople

5 are.

6             JUDGE HAYNES:  And it is normal for

7 customers of ComEd to come in and complain about ch arges

8 and this is where you have to go if you have a comp laint

9 about a ComEd charge.

10             MR. DICKINSON:  Got it.

11             JUDGE HAYNES:  So -- where were we?

12             MR. FOSCO:  We were setting --

13             JUDGE HAYNES:  Responses.

14             MR. FOSCO:  Yes, March 7th.  So -- I me an,

15 I would assume Mr. Dickinson would probably need 28  days

16 to respond and I'm sure we can respond in 28 days.

17             MR. DICKINSON:  If you'd like, I can gi ve

18 you an update and you can bring it forward maybe.  It

19 might not be a month.  I need a little bit of time.   As

20 I said, I will know a lot more as of 3:00 o'clock o n

21 Monday of next week.

22             JUDGE HAYNES:  Let's give it another mo nth
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1 to respond or the four weeks, which is then April 4 th.

2             MR. DICKINSON:  Can I ask one last ques tion

3 about ComEd and according to some aspects about

4 their -- you know, the walking onto somebody's prop erty

5 and doing this without the knowledge of the person

6 they're doing it to?  Where does that -- where do w e

7 stand there?

8             JUDGE HAYNES:  Did you get the company' s

9 answer to your complaint?

10             MR. DICKINSON:  I got a recent one

11 yesterday.

12             JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.

13             MR. DICKINSON:  I didn't get -- yeah.  I

14 got -- I didn't get anything to say that we

15 have -- we're allowed to just walk onto your proper ty

16 and break into your home.  I haven't been told by

17 anybody that that is a policy that you're allowed t o do.

18             As far as I'm concerned, right there

19 is -- is a problem right there.  This all happened with

20 a key from the person that sold me the house from n ext

21 door.  Not my key.

22             JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay --
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1             MR. DICKINSON:  As far as I'm concerned ,

2 that's breaking and entering and that's where it al l

3 starts.  Okay?  They broke into my apartment or my house

4 without any knowledge and that is breaking and entr y,

5 any way you look at it.  But I had somebody the oth er

6 day tell me, oh, no, ComEd has -- we have that in p lace

7 so we can just walk on to your property.  Well, I'v e

8 spoken to a couple of policemen this morning, asked  them

9 both, separately, if that's okay.  Well, hopefully if

10 they're doing their police work right, their answer s are

11 right and they said, no, you cannot do that, the po lice

12 aren't allowed to do that.

13             JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay --

14             MR. FOSCO:  But I think your Honor is r ight,

15 I think we addressed that in our answers so it's no t --

16             JUDGE HAYNES:  If you have follow-up

17 questions to what they put in the answer, ask these  in

18 discovery and you're free to bring this up at the

19 evidentiary hearing.  And if it's a legal question,  I

20 think that everybody is going to want to brief this

21 matter and you can address it in a brief after the

22 hearing.
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1             Okay.  So, just pick an evidentiary dat e

2 after the responses?

3             MR. FOSCO:  Your Honor, how are we plan ning

4 to do this, in terms of live or just pre-filed

5 testimony?

6             JUDGE HAYNES:  Well, generally speaking ,

7 when I have pro se complainants I don't make them f ile

8 pre-filed testimony.  I think Mr. Dickinson is goin g to

9 want to come in and testify.  Although, I don't wan t to

10 a make assumptions, but what this -- at the commiss ion

11 here we frequently, when ComEd comes in for a rate

12 increase or whatever, they file what's called pre-f iled

13 testimony and then it's -- it's in a question and a nswer

14 format.  Then when we come to the actual live heari ng,

15 that is what is your direct testimony and then it i s

16 just cross examination at the live hearing.  But wi thout

17 the assistance of an attorney, generally, it's just  the

18 complainant comes in and I swear you in and you tes tify

19 in support of your complaint that day and if you ha ve

20 witnesses, then, you would be questioning your witn esses

21 on direct.  Obviously, the company would still have  the

22 opportunity to cross examine you or any witnesses y ou
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1 bring.

2             MR. FOSCO:  And, you Honor, we don't ob ject

3 to him putting on his testimony live.  However, thi s is

4 more complex than maybe a typical billing dispute w ith a

5 lot more allegations that are not clearly laid out in

6 our opinion in the complaint.  We're not quite cert ain

7 what will come out of the hearing.  So I would gues s

8 what I would ask is if you wanted to set a hearing for

9 the Plaintiff to put on his case, and then I would

10 suggest that we have a subsequent date for the comp any

11 to put on our case, just because I think we won't k now

12 fully what case we have to respond to -- and we'll try

13 to move expeditiously rather than delay and if --

14             JUDGE HAYNES:  Is that really the way t o

15 deal with it?  Maybe it should -- ahead of the hear ing

16 find out what witnesses, through discovery find out  what

17 witnesses he intends to bring and then you can prep are

18 for hearing that way, rather than hearing his testi mony

19 and then coming back on a different day.

20             MR. FOSCO:  We can do that.  That would  be

21 more substantial discovery that we would have to re spond

22 to, but we can do that.
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1             JUDGE HAYNES:  Do you have an opinion, Mr.

2 Dickinson?

3             MR. DICKINSON:  I'm going to show up wi th

4 like factual -- factual information about these thi ngs,

5 lots of it.  You're going to get so board with it,

6 you're going to be, like, oh, Mr. Dickinson and his

7 evidence.  It's all over the world, mate, you know.

8             JUDGE HAYNES:  I'll try not to roll my eyes

9 like that.  Okay?

10             MR. DICKINSON:  I don't care what you d o,

11 Honey.  You can roll your eyes --

12             JUDGE HAYNES:  Don't call me honey.

13             MR. DICKINSON:  Okay.  I'm sorry.  Forg et

14 got a sense of humor, huh?

15             JUDGE HAYNES:  The question, Mr. Dickin son,

16 is -- and if you don't know at this point, that's f ine,

17 but how many days we're going to need because

18 they're -- how many witnesses you're going to bring

19 and --

20             MR. DICKINSON:  I can't answer that que stion

21 right now, but as I said as of Monday of next week I'll

22 have a much bigger picture about who the witnesses are
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1 going to be.

2             How many people are you allowed to have ?

3             JUDGE HAYNES:  Well, that's not a quest ion

4 I've gotten before.  I guess --

5             MR. DICKINSON:  Like if I showed up wit h a

6 hundred people who've known me for the last two yea rs

7 that have seen me go through all this stuff, you go t

8 room for them?

9             JUDGE HAYNES:  We do.  Actually --

10             MR. DICKINSON:  Good.  Because it might  be a

11 hundred and one people that I bring.

12             JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  How about we pick  a

13 date for the evidentiary hearing and have a status

14 hearing like a week or two before that date, so tha t the

15 parties can tell me how long, how many witnesses, a nd

16 what I need to plan to do for that evidentiary hear ing.

17             MR. FOSCO:  Can we suggest May 16th, yo ur

18 Honor?

19             MR. DICKINSON:  Excuse me.  May 16th?

20             JUDGE HAYNES:  Discovery, if everything  goes

21 well, would be completed by April 4th.  You're

22 threatening 101 witnesses.
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1             MR. DICKINSON:  No, I'm -- I'm joking.  I'm

2 trying to -- no.  It's going over your head.  It's okay.

3 Go ahead.

4             May, though, that seems a lot more -- w e're

5 February, next month is March.  Didn't we just say a

6 month?

7             JUDGE HAYNES:  You're going to -- we're

8 going to have discovery, first, where you request

9 documents from the company and you're going to serv e the

10 company with those requests by March 7th, and they' re

11 going to respond to those requests by April 4th.  A nd,

12 then, after they get all the responses and assuming

13 nothing goes wrong with discovery, the company and you

14 would need time to review all the documents you get  and

15 prepare for the hearing based on all the evidence, then,

16 that you have, and so from April 4th to May 16th is

17 about six weeks.  Is that not acceptable to you?

18             MR. DICKINSON:  It's all acceptable.  B ut

19 when I was thinking May, that sounds a long way off .

20 But, yeah, whatever we got to do to move this forwa rd,

21 as opposed to going round in circles.

22             And I don't want anybody from ComEd eve r
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1 coming -- that's another thing, is they took foreve r --

2 talking about this guy.  The gentleman came up to

3 me -- I felt bad for him.  He had to come up three times

4 from the south side to do this and it's something - -

5 he's been through here for years and he looked at m e, he

6 goes these guys are making mountains from molehills  and

7 it's so easy to do what you plan on doing, but, you

8 know.  What I got out of the last meeting was a

9 gentleman showing up from ComEd that was making all  the

10 decisions with the sunglasses on again, managed to break

11 a vase up on my -- an antique vase, smashed the vas e

12 himself.  Didn't bother saying, Mr. Dickinson, by t he

13 way, I'm sorry, I broke this vase.  It just goes, y ou

14 know -- I don't want those people to come onto my

15 property ever again.  Because as far as I'm concern ed it

16 was like on the Three Stooges, it was not good at a ll.

17 Nobody was coming to -- they were just going on abo ut

18 how much we can trim the -- you know, can you get i t

19 down from 1750 to 1500 and then get told, oh, and b y the

20 way, you have to pay for that.

21             JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  Let's block out M ay 15

22 and 17th and have a status hearing before that wher e we
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1 will strictly be discussing if discovery has been

2 completed and I would like to have a witness list a t the

3 status hearing we're going to hold.  Let's say two weeks

4 before May 16th would be May 2nd.

5             MR. FOSCO:  Your Honor, can I suggest t hat

6 we do -- just because there is a filing on May 1st in

7 the formula rate case, can I suggest May 9th or som etime

8 the next --

9             JUDGE HAYNES:  What day are you suggest ing?

10             MR. FOSCO:  Well, the ninth is a week b efore

11 the 16th.  The sixth or the seventh, any of those, any

12 time from the sixth through the tenth for a status

13 hearing.

14             JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  Let's do it May 7 th.

15 Is that okay with you, Mr. Dickinson?

16             MR. DICKINSON:  Uh-huh.  This will all be

17 sent to me, correct?

18             JUDGE HAYNES:  I will have a notice sen t

19 out.

20             MR. DICKINSON:  Thank you.

21             MR. FOSCO:  Is it preferable in the

22 afternoon or in the morning?
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1             JUDGE HAYNES:  Mr. Dickinson, do you ca re

2 what time of day on May 7th?

3             MR. DICKINSON:  No.  I've got plenty of  time

4 on my hands because I'm not able to work right now,  as

5 you know.

6             JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  Let's keep it at 3:00

7 o'clock, then.  So, at the very least, on May 7th I  want

8 to hear if discovery is completed and a witness lis t for

9 the evidentiary hearing.  The evidentiary hearing w ill

10 be held May 16th and 17th starting at 10:00 o'clock .

11             MR. FOSCO:  Your Honor, will we be able  to

12 submit witnesses by written testimony at that time,  is

13 that your desire, or do you want all live testimony .

14             JUDGE HAYNES:  I guess we didn't finish  that

15 discussion.

16             MR. FOSCO:  We would prefer to have the

17 option -- I mean, they would be available for cross

18 examination.  But I think it may be more efficient to be

19 able to have pre-filed testimony that we can submit  at

20 that time.

21             JUDGE HAYNES:  Mr. Dickinson, the compa ny

22 wants to put their testimony in ahead of the hearin g and
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1 then you would have the opportunity to read it and then

2 cross examine their witnesses at the evidentiary

3 hearing.  Is that okay with you or would you rather

4 they -- I mean, either way they'll show up in perso n for

5 cross examination.

6             MR. DICKINSON:  That's fine.

7             MR. FOSCO:  And I'd like to -- maybe at  the

8 status hearing we can address that.  I mean, at thi s

9 point we don't have witnesses lined up when we come  back

10 for discovery, but I believe it would be -- or how would

11 you like to schedule it?

12             JUDGE HAYNES:  You're saying just direc t

13 testimony from your witnesses and then you would te ll me

14 at the status hearing on May 7th whether you want t o

15 pre-file it?

16             MR. FOSCO:  Whether we're doing that or

17 whether we're going to have -- I mean, because at t his

18 point we haven't retained any experts or witnesses.   I

19 anticipate we will and I anticipate we would want t o

20 submit pre-filed testimony at that time.

21             JUDGE HAYNES:  As long as -- it sounds like

22 Mr. Dickinson doesn't object to that and you can --
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1             MR. DICKINSON:  I just want to make a

2 decision, like, based on this and -- you know, whet her

3 you're available or Mr. Rippie.  I don't care who s hows

4 up, you know, if that's the problem.  I just want - - I

5 want to move forward with this, as I would have tho ught

6 you would want to get me out of your life too, you know.

7             I'm ready to go.  As I say, I'll know m ore

8 on Monday, but I'm available.

9             JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.

10             MR. DICKINSON:  Any time apart from aft er

11 six in the evening.

12             JUDGE HAYNES:  You can bring that up at  the

13 prehearing conference, then.

14             MR. FOSCO:  Okay.

15             Then if I could just make a last statem ent,

16 for the record.  I think Mr. Dickinson has made a l ot of

17 statements that ComEd does not --

18             JUDGE HAYNES:  One more thing before I

19 forget.  How about if there are any motions filed?  I

20 would like them to be filed prior to -- because if

21 there's no pre-filed testimony -- okay.  Never mind .

22             Go ahead.  Make your statement.



44

1             MR. FOSCO:  Your Honor, this is a pro s e

2 complainant and we have been trying to accommodate Mr.

3 Dickinson to the extent possible.  But he made a lo t of

4 statements today and, you know, any lack of a speci fic

5 response should not be considered as an agreement o r

6 admission that those are correct, and we think the

7 evidentiary hearing is where those issues get addre ssed.

8 We did hear about the vase comment and we were not able

9 to -- we don't have any information that occurred.  I

10 can address that further if it's an address that's going

11 to develop in the case.

12             MR. DICKINSON:  No, it's not an issue.  It's

13 just --

14             MR. FOSCO:  We did understand that the ComEd

15 employees that were at his property were wearing sa fety

16 goggles.  I'm not sure if that's the reference to

17 sunglasses, but they do wear safety goggles pursuan t to

18 the company policy.

19             MR. DICKINSON:  I was hoping you might take

20 them off when going into a dark basement and when I  was

21 addressing him, but that's okay, you know.  That's not

22 the end of the world, nor is the vase the end of th e
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1 world.  The fact is he did -- and I have a witness to

2 that.  The fact he smashed it.  I'm sure he didn't do it

3 on purpose, but it would have just been nice if he said,

4 oh, I'm sorry, Mr. Dickinson, I smashed your vase.  That

5 would have been the end of it.  But there was just the

6 whole -- the whole lack of respect for what we were

7 trying to achieve that day.  It was just -- it was

8 incredible.  Between the pair of them and an electr ician

9 couldn't work it out, a way to come down and bring it

10 across at a 90-degree angle and every time the

11 electrician who had way more experience and was a l ot

12 older and has more experience than the two of them put

13 together would say well, can we do this?  The gentl emen

14 from ComEd were just, like, no, that's not code and  it's

15 like the whole code thing -- code, code, code, code ,

16 code.  Everything he said was squashed because you guys

17 had no intention of putting it on the side of my

18 building.  You just -- you know, Mr. Rippie said, o h,

19 money's in, we have the money, that ComEd will pay for

20 it to be moved.  That got all changed around.  That 's

21 why we're here today with nothing has happened.  An d I

22 don't want the thing on my house.  I want it out of  my
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1 life.  I want my life back and move on.  Put me on the

2 list.  I'll be there whatever time anybody wants to  come

3 and check the meter.  But not a digital killer, oka y?

4 Radiation is radiation and I'm being radiated, end of

5 story.  There's nothing else to say.

6             JUDGE HAYNES:  Okay.  Is there anything  else

7 that the parties want to discuss today?

8             MR. DICKINSON:  And this gentleman, wha t

9 he's doing here?  Can I get copies of this, both

10 testimony?

11             JUDGE HAYNES:  Well, you can have -- I' m not

12 exactly sure what the contract says.  But after a

13 certain point in time it shows up on our website.

14             MR. DICKINSON:  It does?  Everything?

15             JUDGE HAYNES:  Yes.

16             MR. DICKINSON:  If you put the docket n umber

17 in, is that how you do it?

18             JUDGE HAYNES:  Right, our eDocket syste m.

19             MR. DICKINSON:  I put it in last night and I

20 don't see, unless there's some -- is there a tab th at

21 comes down that you can click onto, what to look at  it

22 or --
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1             JUDGE HAYNES:  It's under documents.  I t's

2 under documents on the eDocket system with your doc ket

3 number.

4             MR. DICKINSON:  Okay.  I'll look it up.   I'd

5 just like to have a copy is all.

6             JUDGE HAYNES:  Yes.  I don't know if yo u're

7 actually on the eDocket system, but it is available  on

8 our website.  Okay?

9             If there's nothing else, I will have No tice

10 sent out, and we are continued until May 7th at 3:0 0

11 o'clock.  Thank you.

12             (Proceeding adjourned at 3:52 o'clock p .m.)
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